BYLAWS OF THE GIRL SCOUTS OF GREATER MISSISSIPPI, INC. ARTICLE I – NAME

The name of the corporation is Girl Scouts of Greater Mississippi, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "Council," and is a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Mississippi.

ARTICLE II – PURPOSE AND POWERS

Section 1. Purpose

The Council is formed and organized solely for an exempt charitable purpose and such other lawful purposes as a nonprofit organization may conduct. Specifically, the mission of the Council is to continue the Girl Scout mission of making available to girls under its jurisdiction the program, practices, and standards of Girl Scouting as offered by the Girl Scouts of the United States of America.

Section 2. Powers

The Council's rights and powers are exclusively limited to those reasonably necessary to accomplish the stated purpose of the Council and are further subject to the condition that no power or authority shall be exercised by the Council in any manner or for any purpose whatsoever which may not be exercised by an organization which is tax exempt or by any donations which are deductible from taxable income to the extent allowed by the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; as amended, and other applicable legislation and regulations as they now exist or may hereafter be amended. Subject to the limitation expressed in the foregoing sentence, the Council shall have the power to promote, provide, serve and make available to girls under the Council's jurisdiction the program, practices, and standards of Girl Scouting as offered by the Girl Scouts of the United States of America through all necessary and appropriate means to accomplish these goals.

ARTICLE III – REGISTERED OFFICE

Section 1. Principal Office

The principal office of the Council shall be 1471 West County Line Road, Jackson, Mississippi, 39213, or such other place as the Board of Directors from time to time may select.

Section 2. Additional Offices

In addition to the principal office, the Council may have such other offices as may be helpful or convenient to the corporation's operations.

Section 3. Registered Office and Registered Agent

The address of the registered office shall be the address designated by the Board of Directors in the filing with the Office of the Mississippi Secretary of State. The registered agent of the Council shall be the Chief Executive Officer or such other person as the Board of Directors shall designate in the filing with the Office of the Mississippi Secretary of State.

ARTICLE IV - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Eligibility

Individuals age 14 years of age and over who are members of the Girl Scout movement and who are currently registered through and in good standing with the Council comprise the Council's membership and have voting power. All such members are eligible to be elected or appointed as delegates to the Council when it meets.

Section 2. Composition of the Council When It Meets

A. For the efficient and orderly transaction of business, those eligible to be voting members of the Council shall be represented by the following members who are present and who may be enrolled as the voting members for particular meetings (hereinafter "Voting Members" for the purposes of these bylaws):

i. Delegates elected by Service Units as defined by the Board of Directors;

ii. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board Development Committee, Managers of Service Units, if not serving as delegates from Service Units; and

iii. Life members of Girl Scouts of the United States of America residing in the Council's jurisdiction, if not delegates from Service Units, members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board Development Committee, or Managers of Service Units.

B. The total number of potential Voting Members shall be no fewer than 75, at least two-thirds of whom shall be delegates elected by Service Units, and the Board of Directors shall amend its delegate formula as necessary to ensure that these requirements are met.

Section 3. Election

A. Each Service Unit shall elect delegates and alternates in accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board of Directors.

B. Number of Delegates

i. The number of delegates to which each Service Unit is eligible shall be based on the number of girl members in the Service Unit as of September 30 of

96 97			each year, according to the formula currently in use by the Board of Directors and shall be representative of the general membership of the Service Unit.
98			and shall be representative of the general membership of the service offic.
99		ii.	Each Service Unit shall be entitled to at least one delegate plus the Service
100			Unit Manager (see Section 2.A.ii above). If the Service Unit Manager
101			position is vacant or the Service Unit Manager is unable to attend, then the
102			Service Unit shall be entitled to at least two delegates.
103			
104	C.	Terr	n and Vacancies.
105			
106		i.	Delegates shall serve for a term of one year or until their successors are
107			selected and assume office
108			
109		ii.	Terms of office shall begin at the close of the meeting at which delegates are
110			selected or upon their appointment.
111			A TO THE STATE OF
112			ARTICLE V – OFFICERS
113	G	171	4. 1.000
114	Section 1.	Elec	eted Officers
115 116	Tho	alaatad	officers of the council shall be the Chair of the Board; First Vice Chair; Second
117			ary; and Treasurer. Members must be actively serving on the Board of Directors
118			ary, and Treasurer. We moets must be actively serving on the Board of Bricetons are prior to holding one of the officer positions.
119		J	
120	Section 2.	Ter	m of Office
121			
122	A.		officers shall be elected by the Board from the Board's members. If there is only
123			ngle candidate presented for an office, that election may be held by acclamation.
124			Board may appoint assistant officers, agents, and employees, as may be deemed
125		nece	essary, including an Assistant Secretary and/or an Assistant Treasurer.
126	70		
127	В.		ns of office shall be for one year, beginning after the first regular Board Meeting
128			owing the Annual Meeting at which they are elected, and continuing until a
129			ressor is elected, duly qualified, and assumes office or until their death or until
130 131			r resignation shall have been accepted or until they shall have been removed a office as provided in these Bylaws or by the laws of the State of Mississippi.
132			cers must be at least 21 years of age at the conclusion of the Annual Meeting at
133			ch they are elected.
134		WIIIC	on they the elected.
135	C.	Noi	ndividual shall serve more than five consecutive years in any office or until their
136			essor is elected and qualified, despite the expiration of their term.
137			1 , 1 1
138	D.	No i	ndividual shall hold more than one office at a time.
139			
140	E.	An o	officer who has served more than half a term shall be considered to have served a
141		full	term in the office.
142			

144	Section 3.	Vaca	ancy in Office
145146147	A.		e event of a vacancy in the office of Chair of the Board, the vacancy shall be natically filled by the First Vice Chair of the Board for the remainder of the term.
148			
149	B.	In the	e event of a vacancy in the office of First Vice Chair of the Board, the vacancy
150		shall	be automatically filled by the Second Vice Chair of the Board for the remainder
151		of the	e term.
152			
153	C.		cancy among the officers other than the Chair or the First Vice Chair of the Board
154		shall	be filled by the Board of Directors until the next Annual Meeting.
155	Castion 1	D4:	og of Officers
156 157	Section 4.	Duu	es of Officers
157	The i	officers	shall perform the duties prescribed in this Article and such other duties as are
159			n of the Voting Members of the Council, the Board of Directors, the Executive
160	-	•	air of the Board.
161			
162	A.	The (Chair of the Board shall:
163			
164		i.	be the principal officer of the Council;
165			
166		ii.	preside at all meetings of the Council, the Board of Directors, and the
167			Executive Committee;
168			
169		iii.	lead the Board of Directors in setting strategic direction and providing
170			oversight of the management and affairs of the corporation;
171		•	nament to the Metine Members of the Council of the conduct of the office of
172173		iv.	report to the Voting Members of the Council as to the conduct of the affairs of the Council;
174			the Counch,
175		v.	serve as an <i>ex officio</i> member of all committees except the Board Development
176		٧.	Committee;
177			C 5
178		vi.	be authorized to sign, with the Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, or any other
179			proper officer of the Council thereunto authorized by the Board of Directors, any
180			deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board of
181			Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and
182			execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by
183			these Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Council, or shall be required
184			by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and
185			
186		vii.	in general, perform all duties incidental to the office of Chair.
187	D	The P	First Vice Chair of the Doord shall
188	В.	i ne i	First Vice Chair of the Board shall:
189 190		i.	assist the Chair of the Board as assigned;
170		1.	assist the Chair of the Dourd as assigned,

192		ii.	preside at meetings of the Council, the Board of Directors, or the Executive
193			Committee in the absence or inability of the Chair of the Board, or when
194			delegated the responsibility of presiding; and
195			
196		iii.	in the event of the vacancy in the office of the Chair of the Board, succeed to
197			the office of Chair for the remainder of the unexpired term.
198			the office of chair for the remainder of the anemphedicinn
199	C.	The S	Second Vice Chair of the Board shall:
200	C.	1110	second vice chair of the Board Shair.
201		i.	assist the Chair of the Board as assigned; and
202			assist the chair of the Board as assigned, and
203		ii.	preside at meetings of the Council, the Board of Directors, or the Executive
204		11.	Committee in the absence or inability of the Chair of the Board and First Vice
205			Chair, or when delegated the responsibility of presiding officer.
206			chair, or when delegated the responsibility of presiding officer.
207		iii.	in the event of the vacancy in the office of the First Vice Chair of the Board,
208		111.	succeed to the office of First Vice Chair for the remainder of the unexpired term.
209			succeed to the office of That vice chair for the remainder of the discapited term.
210	D.	The	Secretary shall:
211	D.	THE	Secretary sharr.
212		i.	attend all meetings of the Board of Directors unless unable to do so, in which
213		1.	case the Board of Directors shall appoint a Secretary <i>pro tem</i> for that meeting;
213			case the Board of Directors shall appoint a Secretary pro tem for that meeting,
215		ii.	see that proper notice is given for all meetings of the Council, the Board of
216		11.	Directors, and the Executive Committee;
217			Directors, and the Executive Committee,
		iii.	see that minutes of all meetings of the Council, the Board of Directors, and the
218219		111.	Executive Committee are kept;
220			Executive Committee are kept,
221		iv.	be the custodian of the corporate records and have responsibility for the seal
		IV.	of the Council and ensure its safekeeping; and
222			of the Council and ensure its safekeeping, and
223 224		***	in ganaral parform all duties incident to the office of Secretary
224		v.	in general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary.
226	E.	The '	Treasurer shall:
	E.	THE	Treasurer shan.
227		:	have about and austody and he mannarible for all funds and consuiting of the
228		i.	have charge and custody and be responsible for all funds and securities of the
229			Council;
230		::	keen full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements and maintain
231		ii.	keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements and maintain
232			control over the depositing and disbursement of all corporate monies and other
233			valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Council;
234		:::	randon to the Chair or Board of Directors, whenever they receive it
235		iii.	render to the Chair or Board of Directors, whenever they may require it, an
236			account of the transactions of the Treasurer and of the financial condition of the
237			Council;
238			
239			

240 241		iv.	be bonded, if required by the Board of Directors, by a company acceptable to the Board of Directors at the Council's expense;			
242243244		v.	provide oversight of the financial activities of Service Units and Troops in accordance with established policies and procedures; and			
245246		vi.	in general, perform all duties incident to the office of Treasurer.			
247248240	Section 5.	Rem	noval			
249250251252	Any Directors.	Any officer may be removed with or without cause by a majority vote of the Board of ectors.				
253			ARTICLE VI – CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER			
254	A C1	:-C E	ording Officer (CEO) shall be a go into the Decod for each town and an decode			
255256257258	conditions as	s the Bo	cutive Officer (CEO) shall be appointed by the Board for such term and under such pard may adopt. The CEO may be removed by a two thirds vote of the Board, and conditions of any existing contractual obligations. The CEO shall:			
259 260 261	A.		sponsible for providing advice and assistance to the Council, the Board of Directors, ervice Units, the Chair of the Board of Directors and officers, committees, and task ps;			
262263264265	В.	to da	sponsible for administering the operation of the Council, including all aspects of day y operations as described herein or otherwise delegated to the CEO and Staff ncil Staff);			
266267268269	C.	meet	d, or have a representative attend, all meetings of the Board of Directors and the ings of all committees, including the Board Development Committee and the utive Committee, with voice but without vote;			
270271272273	D.		exclusive discretion and authority to establish or dissolve staff positions for the nistration of the Council;			
273274275	E.	defin	e and establish the scope of the duties and responsibilities for staff;			
276 277	F.		and discharge staff and operational volunteers, in accordance with the policies and edures adopted by the Board of Directors; and			
278279280	G.		sponsible for developing policies, procedures, and other guidelines, and making mmendations to the Board of Directors for consideration, review and approval.			
281 282			ARTICLE VII – BOARD DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE			
283 284 285	Section 1.	Men	nbership and Relationship to Board			

The Board Development Committee shall be composed of seven committee members, three

of whom shall be members of the Board of Directors and four of whom shall not be members of

286

the Board of Directors. At the discretion of the Board of Directors, one of the three members from the Board of Directors elected to serve on the Board Development Committee may be the immediate past Chair of the Board Development Committee even though no longer elected to the Board of Directors. Between meetings of the Council, the Board Development Committee shall work with and report to the Board of Directors. The number of elected Board of Director members on the Board Development Committee may not exceed the number of non-Board of Director members.

Section 2. Election, Term, and Vacancies

A. The Committee members shall be elected by the Council in accordance with Article VIII of these Bylaws for a term of three years or until their successors are elected and assume office, and may serve for up to two full terms, or until their successors are elected and assume office.

B. The Board Development Committee shall be organized into three classes as nearly equal as possible in number, with each class consisting of one current member of the Board of Directors whose term of service on the Board of Directors will not expire before the conclusion of their term of office on the Board Development Committee.

C. Terms of office shall begin at the conclusion of the Annual Meeting at which they are elected.

D. No individual shall serve more than two consecutive full terms as a member of the Committee or until their successor is elected and assumes office.

E. An individual who has served more than half of a term shall be considered to have served a full term in the office for purposes of eligibility.

F. In the event of a vacancy in any position, including the Board Development Committee Chair, the vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the remainder of the term, and if the vacancy is for a member who is also a member of the Board of Directors, the vacancy shall only be filled by a member whose term on the Board of Directors will not conclude before the end of the term on the Board Development Committee.

G. Any Board Development Committee member who is absent from two consecutive meetings in their entirety without good cause acceptable to the Committee Chair or designee, may be removed from the Board Development Committee by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

H. Any Board Development Committee member may be removed with or without cause by the Voting Members of the Council in accordance with the laws of the State of Mississippi.

Section 3. Election and Term of Committee Chair

A. The Chair of the Board Development Committee shall be appointed by the Chair of the

336		Board from amongst the elected members of the Board Development Committee,
337		subject to confirmation by the Board of Directors.
338		
339	B.	An individual shall have served on the Board Development Committee for at least one
340		year in order to be eligible for appointment to the position of Chair.
341		
342	C.	The term of office for the Chair shall be two years.
343	ъ.	
344	D.	No individual shall serve more than two consecutive terms as Chair of the
345		Committee regardless of how many years or terms the individual may be a member
346		of the Board Development Committee.
347	Б	A ' 1' ' 1
348	E.	An individual who has served more than half a term in the office shall be considered
349		to have served a full term in the office for purposes of reappointment.
350	-	
351	F.	If not a member of the Board of Directors, the Chair shall be invited to attend
352		meetings of the Board and when present shall have voice but not vote.
353	G 4 4	
354	Section 4.	Meetings
355	A	
356	A.	The Board Development Committee shall hold at least three regular meetings a year
357		at such time and place as the Committee Chair may determine. The Board
358		Development Committee may hold such additional meetings as may be necessary to
359		fulfill its duties and responsibilities.
360	D	
361	В.	Notice of the date, time, and place of each Board Development Committee meeting
362		shall be given personally or delivered by mail or email, if an email address has been
363		provided, to each member of the Board Development Committee at least three days
364		prior to the meeting. The Board Development Committee may, by resolution, set the
365		time and place for holding regular meetings and no other notice of the meeting shall
366		be required other than the resolution. The Board Development Committee may
367		permit any or all Committee Members to participate in a regular meeting by, or
368		conduct the meeting through the use of, any means of communication by which all
369		members participating may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting.
370	C	Mambaus of the Dougland Davelonment Committee shell not have the night to yet by
371	C.	Members of the Board Development Committee shall not have the right to vote by
372		proxy at any meeting.
373	C42 =	D
374	Section 5.	Responsibilities
375	The	was a suitilities of the Doord David annual Committee shall be
376	Ine	responsibilities of the Board Development Committee shall be:
377	٨	to collect recognit and reminests condidates for the Decard of Directors of the Council
378	A.	to solicit, recruit, and nominate candidates for the Board of Directors of the Council
379		who meet the following qualifications:
380		i commitment to the mission of the Co
381		i. commitment to the mission of the Council.
382		" which has with flowibilter and an arrange to the access to the second state.
383		ii. vision, but with flexibility and openness to the possibilities of change.

384		iii.	held in high regard and respect by others.
385			
386		iv.	influential member of the Council and/or community.
387			
388			able to strengthen the Council because of the expertise they bring from their
389			business or professional background.
390			
391			adds diversity to the mix of individuals comprising the Board, including age,
392			gender, race, background, expertise, etc.
393			
394			is an expert specific to the Council's field, donor committed to the cause, or is a
395			community leader able to attract support.
396			
397			informed; available, and engaged; willing to attend meetings and represent the
398			Council or its interests at community events and donor circles; willing to help
399			bring in necessary resources.
400			
401		ix.	is a conscientious steward who is as interested in the business of developing the
402			Council and monitoring its health as they are in promoting its programs.
403			
404		х.	willing to adhere to all rules, regulations, and policies of the Council and Girl
405			Scouts of the United States of America.
406			
407	B.	to prov	ride to the membership a single slate of nominees for all positions for
408		confirn	nation and election to the Board of Directors, and Board Development
409		Comm	ittee;
410			
411			in fulfillment of this duty, the Committee shall solicit nominations from the
412			Council's membership, who may submit prospective nominees for the
413			Committee's consideration.
414			
415			an opportunity shall be provided for those submitting nominations to
416			advocate on behalf of those nominees at an open meeting of the Committee at
417			a date established by the Committee prior to its development of a single slate
418			of nominees.
419			
420			such nominations and advocacy shall be received on a timeline as approved
421			by the Committee allowing adequate time for its usual and proper vetting
422			process.
423			
424	C.	-	ride to the membership in accordance with the timeframe established by Girl
425			of the United States of America a single slate of delegates and alternates to the
426			al Council Session of Girl Scouts of the United States of America.
427			ations from the floor for these delegates and alternates shall be allowed at the
428			g of the Council at which elections are held, provided the eligibility of the
429			uals so nominated has been established and is in accordance with these
430		•	s, and the written consent of such individuals has been secured and submitted
431		at the r	neeting, at least five business days prior to the meeting of the Council.

432		
433	D.	to provide leadership in the development of a program of support and
434	Д.	encouragement for the Board of Directors that promotes excellence and vitality.
435		Such a program includes:
436		Such a program merades.
437		i. orientation and education materials for the Board of Directors.
438		i. Orientation and education materials for the Board of Directors.
436 439		ii. development materials for the Board of Directors.
440		ii. development materials for the Board of Directors.
441		iii. methods for identifying needed skills and talents for the Board of Directors and
442		committees.
442		commutees.
		ive motheds for suggestion planning for the Doord of Directors
444		iv. methods for succession planning for the Board of Directors.
445 446		v. self-assessment process for the Board of Directors.
447		v. self-assessment process for the Board of Directors.
	E.	to plan Board of Directors orientation and Board Development training sessions as
448	E.	needed and/or as directed by the Board of Directors.
449 450		needed and/or as directed by the Board of Directors.
450 451	Section 6.	Ouemum
451	Section 0.	Quorum
452 453	A me	jority of members of the Board Development Committee shall be present in person or
454		ecommunication or other electronic means such that all members participating in the
454	•	able to simultaneously hear one another and participate in the proceedings to constitute
455 456	_	r the transaction of business.
457	a quorum 10	the transaction of business.
		ARTICLE VIII – MEETINGS
458		ARTICLE VIII – WIEETINGS
459	Castion 1	Annual Masting
460	Section 1.	Annual Meeting
461	A.	The Annual Meeting of the Council shall be held no later than nine months after the
462 463	Α.	end of each fiscal year (September 30) at a date, time, and place determined by the
464		Board of Directors.
465 466	В.	Notice of the date, time, and place of the Annual Meeting, accompanied by a
467	В.	tentative agenda (as established by the Board of Directors), the slate of nominees for
468		the Board of Directors, Board Development Committee and all other elected
469		positions, and any proposed amendments to the Bylaws, shall be delivered in person,
470		or by mail or electronic transmission if appropriate to each Voting Member of the
470 471		Council not fewer than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the meeting. Service
471		Units submitting agenda items for consideration at the Annual Meeting of members
473		are required to do so in writing to the Chief Executive Officer or Chair of the Board
473 474		of Directors not less than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the Annual Meeting.
		of Directors not less than sixty (00) days prior to the date of the Annual Weeting.
475 476	C.	Business.
476 477	C.	Dusiness.
477 478		At the Annual Meeting, the Council shall:
478 479		At the Annual Meeting, the Council Shall.
サノブ		

480		i.	confirm and elect members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board
481			Development Committee, and in appropriate years, delegates and alternates to
482			the National Council of the Girl Scouts of the United States of America.
483			
484		ii.	consider any proposed amendments to the Council Bylaws;
485			
486		iii.	provide input on key issues affecting the Council and the Girl Scout
487			movement; and
488			
489		iv.	consider any other business appropriate to come before the Council in
490			accordance with the process established by the Board of Directors.
491	Ъ	The	growing for the Arguel Marting shall be 50 Nating March are of the Council
492	D.		quorum for the Annual Meeting shall be 50 Voting Members of the Council,
493		-	ided that a majority of the Council's Service Units are represented by at least
494 495		one c	delegate or by their Service Unit Manager.
493 496	E.	Due	to the nature of the organization and the need for full vetting of nominees which
497	L.		include determinations based on information that cannot be disclosed openly, no
498		•	nations from the floor shall be allowed for positions on the Board of Directors or
499			soard Development Committee.
500		the B	ourd Development Committee.
501	F.	Voti	ng.
502	1.	, oth	-6 ·
503		i.	Each Voting Member of the Council shall be entitled to one vote.
504			
505		ii.	No Voting Member shall vote in more than one capacity.
506			β
507		iii.	Unless otherwise designated by statute, the Articles of Incorporation, or the
508			Bylaws, all matters shall be determined by a majority vote.
509			
510	G.	Elect	tion of the slate of nominees for election to the Board of Directors and Board
511		Deve	elopment Committee shall be by a single vote for or against the adoption of the
512		slate	of nominees. If there is not a majority vote in favor of the adoption of the slate
513		then	the currently serving Directors and Committee members shall remain in office
514			the next Annual Meeting or shall individually follow the process for resignation
515			their positions, in which case the process for addressing vacancies in those
516		posit	ions shall be followed.
517			
518	Section 2.	Spec	cial Meetings
519			
520	A.	-	ecial meeting of the Council may be called by the Chair of the Board of
521			ctors and shall be called by the Chair of the Board upon the written request
522		_	ed by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors then in office. In
523 524			ion, a special meeting shall also be called at the written request of five percent
524 525			e members with voting power as defined in Article IV, Section 1, in accordance laws of the State of Mississippi
525 526		witti	laws of the State of Mississippi.
1/11			

- B. The purpose of a special meeting shall be stated in the written request, and business at the meeting shall be limited to that stated in the written request, excluding any business previously approved.
 - C. Notice of the date, time, place, and specific purpose of the meeting shall be delivered personally or by mail or email, if an email address has been provided, to each Voting Member of the Council at least 30 days prior to the meeting.
 - D. The quorum for a special meeting shall be 50 Voting Members of the Council, provided that a majority of the Council's Service Units are represented by at least one delegate or by their Service Unit Manager.
 - E. Voting shall be in accordance with Article VIII, Section 1.F. of these Bylaws.

Section 3. Notice

Any and all notices and other communications shall be delivered in person, by mail or electronic transmission as prescribed by the Board of Directors to each Member of the Council not fewer than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to any meeting.

ARTICLE IX – BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. General Powers

All business and affairs of the Council shall be under the sole authority of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, or by statute. The power of the Board of Directors shall include, but not be limited to, the authority to establish policies and procedures regarding use of the Council's funds, including such policies and procedures as the Board of Directors may deem necessary to prevent private inurement or individual benefit accruing to any Director or Member.

Section 2. Composition and Term of Office

The Board of Directors shall be composed of up to twenty-one members.

The members of the Board of Directors shall be elected for terms of three years, arranged in three equal classes with the term of one class expiring at each Annual Meeting of the Council; however, a Director shall continue to serve until his or her successor is elected and qualified, despite the expiration of that Director's term, and Directors are eligible to serve for up to two consecutive full terms or until their successors are elected and assume office.

Directors elected by the Members to fill a vacancy on the Board of Directors shall hold office for a term expiring at the Annual Meeting at which the term of the class to which they shall have been elected expires. No individual shall serve more than two consecutive full terms as a Director and must not serve for one year before being eligible to serve again as a Director. A Director who has served more than half of a term shall be considered to have served a full term for purposes of eligibility for reelection.

Section 3. Vacancies

Any vacancy on the Board of Directors may be filled by vote of the Directors remaining in office. Each Director appointed to fill such vacancy shall serve until his/her successor is elected at the next Annual Meeting of the Council.

Section 4. Accountability

The Board of Directors shall abide by and adhere to:

A. the laws of the State of Mississippi;

B. the federal laws relating to governance and legislation affecting nonprofit/not-for-profit/non-stock corporations (including, but not limited to, the requirements of the Internal Revenue Service as to 501(c)(3) public charities);

C. the rules, regulations, and policies adopted by the Council for managing the affairs of the Council including development of a decision-influencing system (i.e., committees, task forces, or similar position of authority created by the Board of Directors) allowing for members of the Girl Scout movement, including girl members, to have a voice on key issues affecting the Council and the Girl Scout movement, and signing and complying with the Council's Conflict of Interest Policies and such other policies and procedures as the Board of Directors shall require; and

D. the rules, regulations, and policies adopted by the Board of Directors of Girl Scouts of the United States of America and for compliance with the charter requirements.

Section 5. Regular Meetings

A. The Board of Directors shall hold at least six regular meetings a year, on a bimonthly basis, at such time and place as the board may determine.

B. Notice of the date, time, and place of each board meeting shall be mailed or electronically transmitted to each member of the Board of Directors at least three days prior to the meeting. The Board of Directors may, by resolution, set the time and place for holding regular meetings and no other notice of the meeting shall be required than the resolution. The Board of Directors may permit any or all Directors to participate in a regular meeting by, or conduct the meeting through the use of, any means of communication by which all Directors participating may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting.

Section 6. Special Meetings

A. Special Meetings may be called by the Chair of the Board and shall be called by the Chair of the Board upon the written request of at least one third of the Board members.

B. Notice of the date, time, place, and specific purpose of the meeting shall be given personally, mailed, or electronically transmitted to each member of the Board at least twenty-four hours prior to the meeting. The Board of Directors may permit any or all Directors to participate in a Special Meeting by, or conduct the meeting through the use of, any means of communication by which all Directors participating may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting. Such written request shall state the purpose or purposes of such Special Meeting. Only those matters that are within the purpose or purposes described in the notice of Special Meeting may be conducted at a Special Meeting of the Board.

Section 7. Quorum

A majority of the members of the Board of Directors shall be present in person or linked by telecommunication or by means such that all members participating in the meeting, regular or special, are able to simultaneously hear one another and participate in the proceedings to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Section 8. Voting

A. Each member of the Board of Directors shall be entitled to one vote.

B. Unless otherwise designated by statute, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Bylaws, all matters shall be determined by a majority vote.

C. Members of the Board of Directors shall not have the right to vote by proxy at any meeting.

Section 9. Action in Lieu of Meeting

 Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth such action, is signed by at least three fourths of the Directors, and such written consent is filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board. Such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote, and shall be reported and included in the minutes of the next meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 10. Committees

The Board of Directors may, by resolution passed by a majority of the entire Board of Directors, establish one or more standing and special committees and/or task groups and ad hoc committees as needed, which shall operate under the general supervision of the Board of Directors. Those committees may include, but are not limited to, the following committees: Strategic Planning Committee, Finance Committee, Audit Committee, Property Committee, Volunteer Awards Committee, Fund Development Committee (which shall include all members of the Board of Directors), and Bylaws Committee.

A. Appointment.

i. The Chair of any standing committee, task group, or ad hoc committees shall be appointed by the Chair of the Board, subject to the approval of the Board of

			·			
673			Directors.			
674						
675		ii.	Members of any standing committee, task group, or ad hoc committee shall			
676			be appointed by the Chair of the Board in consultation with the Chair of the			
677			respective committee or task group.			
678						
679	;	iii.	Each committee or task group shall have at least one person who serves on			
680		111.	the Board of Directors.			
681			the Board of Directors.			
		:	Amointments to committees and took amount shall be for one year unless a			
682		iv.	Appointments to committees and task groups shall be for one year unless a			
683			different term is specified by the Board of Directors at the time of			
684			appointment.			
685						
686		V.	Vacancies in any committee or task group shall be filled by the Chair of the			
687			Board of Directors in accordance with Section A.i. or A.ii. of this Section.			
688						
689	В.	A maj	ority of committee or task group members shall be present in person or linked			
690			y telecommunication or by means such that all members participating in the			
691			ag are able to simultaneously hear one another and participate in the			
692			edings to constitute a quorum.			
693		ргоссс	dings to constitute a quorum.			
694	C.	As dee	med appropriate, the Board of Directors may create one or more committees to			
	C.					
695			the Board in matters which come before it, and/or to assist the Board in			
696		-	nenting and carrying out its decisions, and appoint members to serve on such			
697			ttees. Such committees shall act only in accordance with the directives of the			
698			of Directors, and all decision-making authority shall at all times remain solely and			
699			ively in the Board of Directors, except to the extent delegated to officers as set			
700		forth in	n the Bylaws or as otherwise expressly delegated by the Board.			
701						
702	Section 11.	Remo	val			
703						
704	A.	Any B	oard member who is absent from three consecutive Board of Directors' meetings			
705			ntirety without good cause acceptable to the Chair of the Board or designee, may			
706			oved from the Board by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.			
707						
708	B.	Anv B	oard member may be removed with or without cause in accordance with laws			
709	Β.	•	State of Mississippi.			
710		or the	Suite of Mississippi.			
			A DEPICT E V Transport Communication			
711			ARTICLE X – EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE			
712		~				
713	Section 1.	Comp	osition			
714		_				
715			e Committee shall consist of the Chair of the Board, the First Vice Chair of the			
716			ce Chair of the Board, the Secretary, the Treasurer and two additional Members of			
717			s. The two additional members shall be appointed by the Chair of the Board from			
718	the members	s of the B	oard of Directors.			
719						

Section 2. **Duties** 721 722 723 A. The Executive Committee shall exercise the authority of the Council's Board of Directors between the meetings of the Board, except that the Executive Committee 724 shall not have the authority to: 725 726 i. 727 adopt the budget; 728 729 ii. amend or revise the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws; 730 731 iii. take action which is contrary to, or a substantial departure from, the direction established by the Board of Directors or which represents a major change in 732 the affairs, business, or policy of the Council. 733 734 735 authorize distributions, or approve or recommend to the members dissolution, iv. merger, or the sale, pledge, or transfer of all or substantially all of the 736 737 Council's assets; and elect, appoint, or remove directors to fill vacancies on the Board or on any 738 v. Board committees. 739 740 The Executive Committee shall submit to the Board of Directors at each Board 741 B. 742 meeting a report of all actions taken since the last Board meeting. 743 744 Section 3. **Meetings** 745 The Executive Committee shall meet only as needed at the call of the Chair or upon 746 A. written request of at least one third of the members of the Executive Committee. 747 748 749 B. Notice of the date, time, and place of each meeting shall be provided at least twentyfour hours in advance of the meeting. 750 751 Section 4. 752 Quorum 753 A majority of the Executive Committee members then in office shall be present in person or 754 linked by telecommunication or by means such that all members participating in the meeting are 755 able to simultaneously hear one another and participate in the proceedings to constitute a quorum for 756 the transaction of business. 757 758 ARTICLE XI - SERVICE UNITS 759 760 Section 1. **Subdivisions** 761 762 763

764 765

766 767 768

The Board of Directors shall establish geographic or functional subdivisions of the troops within the Council's jurisdiction (Troops), known as service units (Service Units), which shall serve as a planning and review unit to provide an open communication line between the Board, and the Council, Service Units, Council Staff, and Troops in accordance with Council policy.

Section 2. Members

Each member of the Girl Scout movement 14 years of age or over, registered through the Council, and residing or working in a Service Unit's geographical or functional subdivision shall be a member of such Service Unit.

Section 3. Responsibilities of the Service Unit

It shall be the responsibility of the Service Unit to:

A. Elect delegates and alternates to meetings of the Council, present the view of the Service Unit to the delegates so that they may represent those views to the Council, and receive the delegates' reports;

B. Consider and assist in educating their Troops on proposed plans, policies, and other matters referred to the Service Unit by the Council, in cooperation with the Council Staff;

C. Participate in the strategic planning process as delegated by the Council and Board of Directors:

D. Submit proposals to the Council Staff for improving the quality of Girl Scouting;

 E. Review established policies and procedures and make recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning proposed changes by providing notice of any recommendations for changes to the Council Staff for consideration;

F. Perform other such duties as may be delegated to the Service Unit, and;

 G. Follow the rules, policies, and procedures of the Council and Girl Scouts of the United States of America, these Bylaws, and the laws of the State of Mississippi.

ARTICLE XII - NATIONAL COUNCIL DELEGATES

Section 1. Eligibility

Delegates and alternates to the National Council of the Girl Scouts of the United States of America shall be United States Citizens age 14 years and older. They shall be members in good standing of the Girl Scout movement registered through the Council at the time of election and throughout the term of service.

Section 2. Election

The delegates and alternates to whom the council is entitled to elect to the National Council of the Girl Scouts of the United States of America shall be elected in accordance with Article VII of these Bylaws in accordance with the timeframe established by the Girl Scouts of the United States of America and shall serve a term of three years or until their successors are elected and assume office.

Section 3. Vacancies

The Board of Directors shall fill delegate vacancies from among the elected alternates. If there are not adequate alternates to fill the delegate positions, the vacancies may be filled from amongst the eligible members of the Council until the next Annual Meeting.

ARTICLE XIII - FINANCE

Section 1. Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the council shall be October 1 through September 30.

Section 2. Contributions

Any contributions, bequests, devises, and gifts for the purpose of Girl Scouting within the council shall be accepted or collected only as authorized by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Depositories

All funds of the Council shall be deposited to the credit of the Council under such conditions and in such financial institutions as shall be designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Approved Signatures

Approvals for signatory authority in the name of the Council and access to funds and securities of the Council shall be authorized by the Board of Directors.

Section 5. Bonding

All persons having access to or responsibility for the handling of monies and securities of the Council shall be bonded in the amount authorized by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Budget

The Board of Directors shall approve the annual operational and capital budgets. No expenses shall be incurred in the name of the Council in excess of the budgeted amounts without prior approval of the Board of Directors.

Section 7. Property

Title to all real and personal property shall be held in the name of the Council.

Section 8. Audits

An independent certified public accountant shall be retained by the Board of Directors to perform an annual audit of the financial statements of the Council. A report of the audit shall be submitted to the Board of Directors and to the Girl Scouts of the United States of America.

Section 9. Financial Reports

The Treasurer of the Council shall annually prepare a detailed financial report of contributions and expenditures of the Council during its fiscal year. A summary report of the financial condition of the council shall be presented to the membership at the Annual Meeting.

Section 10. Investments

The funds of the Council, Service Units, and Troops shall only be invested in accordance with the policies established by the Board of Directors or by a committee appointed by the Board of Directors for such purpose. No action shall be taken by or on behalf of the Council if such action is a prohibited transaction or would result in the denial of the tax exemption under the Internal Revenue Code and its regulations.

Section 11. Contracts

The CEO, Chair of the Board of Directors, and such other officers as may be authorized by the Board of Directors from time to time are authorized, with prior approval of the Board of Directors, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Council and to institute, join in, or become a party to any suit at law or in equity in which the Council may have an interest. The Secretary of the Council may attest the signatures of such officers and affix the corporate seal, if any, to any such instrument; however, the presence of such attesting signature or corporate seal shall not be required for the validity of such instrument unless required by law. Other officers or employees may be empowered by the Board of Directors to execute such contracts or instruments as the Board of Directors directs.

Section 12. Loans

No loan shall be contracted on behalf of the Council, a Service Unit, or Troop, and no evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific incidents.

Section 13. Restriction on Use of Funds

 The Board of Directors shall have the authority to establish policies and procedures regarding use of the Council's funds, including such policies and procedures as the Board of Directors may deem necessary to prevent private inurement or individual benefit accruing to any Director.

Section 14. Banking Transactions

 All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money issued in the name of the Council in an amount exceeding Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) shall be signed by two officers approved by the Board of Directors, or such other officer or employee of the Council and in such manner as shall be, from time to time, specifically determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 15. No Private Benefit

No part of the receipts or assets of the Council shall ever inure to the benefit of any individual or private organization except for such organization which qualifies for income tax exemption under Section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

Section 16. Corporate Seal

The Board of Directors may provide a suitable corporate seal for use by the Council, but no seal shall be necessary for the validity of any transaction except as may be required by law.

Section 17. Insurance

The Board of Directors shall have the authority to purchase such insurance as it deems necessary to protect the interest of the Council.

Section 18. Legal Counsel

Independent legal counsel may be retained by the Board of Directors to:

A. ensure compliance with federal and state requirements;

B. review and advise on any and all legal instruments the Council executes, such as leases, contracts, property purchases, or sales;

C. review and advise on any official statements developed for the media (print, television, radio or internet); and

D. advise and counsel the Board of Directors on such other matters as the Board of Directors deems necessary.

ARTICLE XIV – CONFLICT OF INTEREST/STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors shall adopt and maintain policies regarding conflicts of interest and standards of conduct, which shall require all Directors and officers to complete and sign an annual statement disclosing and indicating any conflict or potential conflict with her or his service on the Board or as an officer.

ARTICLE XV – INDEMNIFICATION

The Council shall indemnify Directors and officers against losses actually and reasonably incurred in connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceeding relating to the performance of their duties to the full extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE XVI – CORPORATE RECORDS

The Council, Service Units, and Troops shall maintain corporate and financial records including all records required to be kept by law and as may be required by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XVII – DISSOLUTION

In the event of dissolution, the residual assets of the organization will be turned over to one or more organizations which themselves are exempt as organizations described in Sections 501(c)(3) and 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 or corresponding sections of any prior or future law, and which pertains to Girl Scouting in the Council's jurisdiction and provides specifically for Girl Scout programs under Council of Girl Scouts of the United States of America or its successors and/or legal assigns or to the Federal government, State government, or local governments for exclusive public purposes.

ARTICLE XVIII – PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The current edition of *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised* shall be the parliamentary authority of the Council, Board of Directors, Annual Meetings, Service Units, and all committees, subject to the laws of the State of Mississippi, the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, and any special rules of order adopted by the Council.

ARTICLE XIX – AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be amended by a two thirds vote of the Voting Members present and voting at a meeting of the Council, provided that the material/terms/substance of the proposed amendments shall have been included with the notice of the meeting.

ARTICLE XX – POLICIES

The Council, Service Units, and Troops shall abide by all policies established by the Board of Directors. The Council Staff shall periodically review established policies, including, but not limited to, a policy regarding Girl Scout movement, and make recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning any proposed changes.

Adopted 08.11.18 with Provisos for Transition Attached